

# Minutes of the regular meeting of the Board of Regents of the University of Wisconsin: January 17, 1942. 1942

Madison, Wisconsin: Board of Regents of the University of Wisconsin System, 1942

https://digital.library.wisc.edu/1711.dl/NYITTKATNEHKR8H

Copyright 2008 Board of Regents of the University of Wisconsin System

The libraries provide public access to a wide range of material, including online exhibits, digitized collections, archival finding aids, our catalog, online articles, and a growing range of materials in many media.

When possible, we provide rights information in catalog records, finding aids, and other metadata that accompanies collections or items. However, it is always the user's obligation to evaluate copyright and rights issues in light of their own use.

#### REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF REGENTS

Madison, Wisconsin

Saturday. January 17, 1942, 9 A.M.

Vice President Vergeront presiding

PRESENT: Regents Callahan, Cleary, Ekern, Hodgkins, Kleczka, Sensenbrenner, Vergeront, Werner.

ABSENT: Regents Glover, Holmes.

A communication was presented from A. J. Glover in explanation of his absence. A message was received from Regent Holmes' office advising that he was ill and would be unable to come to the meeting.

Upon motion of Regent Cleary, seconded by Regent Hodgkins, it was VOTED, That the minutes of the last meeting of the Board held on December 6. 1941. be approved as sent out to the Regents.

President Dykstra called attention to the actions which he had taken since the December 6, 1941, meeting of the Board, which had been sent out to the Regents, and to the additional appointment of Howard Odell as assistant professor of physical education at a salary of \$5000 per year, beginning with the second semester of the current year. Upon motion of Regent Cleary, seconded by Regent Werner, it was

VOTED, That these actions be approved and made a part of the records of this meeting.

#### RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE PRESIDENT

#### - Gifts and Grants -

- 1. That the following gifts and grants be approved:
  - (a) \$2,000.00 Ludlow Manufacturing and Sales Company, Boston,
    Massachusetts, for the establishment of an
    industrial fellowship in agronomy for studies
    on hemp, under the supervision of A. H. Wright,
    from December 22, 1941 to December 22, 1942, and
    that the Comptroller be authorized to sign the
    agreement.
  - (b) 2,500.00 The National Live Stock and Meat Board, Chicago, Illinois, for the establishment of an additional fellowship in the departments of biochemistry and agricultural bacteriology for studies on cattle livers under the supervision of C. A. Elvehjem and Elizabeth McCoy, for a twelve months' period ending November 30, 1942, and that the Comptroller be authorized to sign the agreement.
  - (c) 400.00 American Guernsey Cattle Club, Peterborough, New Hampshire, for the establishment of an industrial fellowship in the department of genetics for studies on the blood of cattle under the supervision of Professor M. R. Irwin, from November 1, 1941 to October 1, 1942, and that the Comptroller be authorized to sign the agreement.
  - (d) 2,600.00 Wilson & Company, Chicago, Illinois, for the renewal of an industrial research fellowship in the departments of biochemistry and veterinary science for studies on mink under the supervision of Professors C. A. Elvehjem, E. B. Hart, and W. Wisnicky, from December 15, 1941 to December 15, 1942, and that the Comptroller be authorized to sign the agreement.
- (e) 750.00 The Josiah Macy, Jr. Foundation, New York City, for researches in psychology under the supervision of Dr. Molly Harrower-Erickson, for six months during 1942.

agreement.

agent to light hite

Agerra.

(f) \$1,350.00 - For the Pro Arte Quartet Fund:

\$1,000.00 - F. J. Sensenbrenner, Neenah

100.00 - Harry A. Bullis, Minneapolis

100.00 - John S. Lord, Chicago

100.00 - Howard I. Potter, Chicago

50.00 - Mr. and Mrs. Scudder Mekeel.

(g) 2,500.00 - Sears-Roebuck Agricultural Foundation, for 19 agricultural scholarships for farm boys enrolled in the regular four-year course in agriculture and 12 scholarships for farm boys enrolled in the Farm Folk School during the academic year 1942-43, and that the Comptroller be authorized to sign the agreement.

(h) 820.0

820.00 - National Research Council, Washington, D. C., for a research grant in home economics and biochemistry to carry on a study of the riboflavin requirements of man, under the supervision of Professor Helen M. Parsons and Dr. F. M. Strong, and that the Compton troller be authorized to sign the agreement.

(i) 100.00 - Minneapolis branch of the Wisconsin Alumnae for the establishment of the Henrietta Wood Kessenich student loan fund.

Adopted.

#### - Letters and Science -

l. That the salary of L. E. Noland, professor of zoology, be adjusted beginning with the second semester of 1941-42 as follows: \$1,625 to item for Noland, zoology, p. 46, and \$625 to Lakes and Streams work (no change in total salary, \$4,500, for the academic year 1941-42).

Adopted.

#### - Comptroller -

l. That the Comptroller be authorized to sign a memorandum of agreement with Paul F. Clark and Alice Schiedt Clark, of Madison, for the publication by the University of Wisconsin press of a scholarly document entitled, "Memorable Days in Medicine".

Action deferred until the next meeting of the Board.

2. That \$20,000 be transferred from 15B Gifts, unused balances in Wisconsin Alumni Research Foundation allotments made prior to July 1, 1941, to University trust funds principal and that this sum be invested in United States government bonds; that the income from these bonds be credited to principal and that the principal sum including earnings be held in reserve for such research purposes as may be determined by the University Research Committee and approved by the Regents.

Adopted.

A discussion was then had of the recommendation which was presented at the December 6, 1941, meeting, with reference to the signing of an agreement with Stephen L. Ely for the publication by the University of Wisconsin press of a document entitled "The Religious Availability of Whitehead's God" and upon which action was deferred until this meeting. Upon motion of Regent Ekern, seconded by Regent Werner, it was

VOTED, That action on this recommendation and recommendation No. 1

under Comptroller be laid over until the next meeting of the Board.

Upon motion of Regent Kleczka, seconded by Regent Werner, it was VOTED, That recommendation No. 1 (a) to (i) under Gifts and Grants, recommendation No. 1 under Letters and Science and recommendation No. 2 under Comptroller be adopted.

#### - Medicine -

- 1. That Fritz Kant be appointed professor of neuropsychiatry, from February 1, 1942 to July 1, 1942; at the rate of \$5,000 per annum, 12 months' basis, vice Bleckwenn, on leave, fund 1-A.

  Adopted.
- 2. That William J. Bleckwenn, professor of neuropsychiatry, be granted leave of absence from February 1, 1942 to July 1, 1942, without salary.

  Adopted.
- 3. That the resignation of Maurice H. Seevers, associate professor of pharmacology, be accepted, to take effect February 1, 1942.

  Adopted.

That Willard Hurst, associate professor of law, be granted leave of absence, without pay, for the second semester of 1941-42. Adopted.

- Degrees -work at the close of the first semester of 1941-42, in accordance with the in the Registrar. Adopted.

That in accordance with the certification of the Registrar degrees be granted as shown in EXHIBIT A, on file. Adopted.

Upon motion of Regent Cleary, seconded by Regent Hodgkins, it was VOTED. That recommendations 1 to 3 under Medicine, recommendation No. 1 under Law and recommendations 1 and 2 under Degrees be adopted.

그리고는 하다면 하는 사람들이 되었다. 그리고 얼마를 하는 것을 받는다.

President Dykstra reported upon the matter of civilian defense at the Wisconsin General Hospital and it was stated that there is general participation in civilian defense throughout the University

The President reported upon the shortage of funds for the operation of the Psychiatric Institute and asked Comptroller Peterson to present the matter. Upon motion of Regent Sensenbrenner, seconded by Regent Cleary it was

VOTED, That the Emergency Board be requested for an appropriation of \$7800 for the Psychiatric Institute. 

. President Dykstra called attention to the resolution passed by the Wisconsin Association of Real Estate Brokers regarding the establishment of courses for real estate brokers at the University. The President explained that the Departments of Economics and Commerce had already initiated a discussion of this matter.

President Dykstra called attention to the resolution passed by the etter Wiscon Hall. Wiscopsin Dairymen's Association regarding the preservation of Hiram Smith

President Dykstra reported that the OPM had refused to grant a priority rating for new radio antenna for WHA.

President Dykstra presented the following requests for appropriations from Regents Unassigned:

- (a) \$900.00 College of Agriculture appointment of Mrs. Margaret H. Irwin, part-time instructor in home economics (administration and foods), second semester of 1941-42.
  - (b) \$625.00 for Lakes and Streams work.

Upon motion of Regent Sensenbrenner, seconded by Regent Kleczka, it was

VOTED, That the appropriations be approved.

회장 보다하다 그는 이렇게 하는 그렇지 하다가 하다가 되었다.

Comptroller Peterson reported upon the provision for the rehabilitation scholarships, referred to the Executive Committee for investigation at the December meeting of the Board. Upon motion of Regent Cleary, seconded by Regent Ekern, it was

VOTED, That not to exceed 60 rehabilitation scholarships be approved for each semester of 1941-42 on the same basis as in previous years.

Upon motion of Regent Sensenbrenner, seconded by Regent Cleary, it was

VOTED, That the minutes of the meeting of the Executive Committee of the Regents held on December 19, 1941, be approved, ratified and confirmed.

Upon motion of Regent Werner, seconded by Regent Callahan, it was VOTED, That when this meeting adjourns it adjourn to February 6, 1942, at 9 A.M.

It was explained that because of the change in the calendar it might be necessary to have a special meeting of the Board to vote degrees. After some discussion of this and upon motion of Regent Ekern, seconded by Regent Cleary, it was

Committee arrange a schedule of Board meetings to be presented at the February 6, 1942, meeting of the Board.

The Campus Development Committee, Regents Hodgkins, Werner, and Ekern, arranged to meet with Dean Christensen immediately after the meeting of the Board to go over plans for an addition to the Genetics Building. Chairman Hodgkins stated that the report of his committee would be made at the next meeting of the Board.

At 11 A.M. the meeting adjourned.

M. E. McCaffrey,

Secretary

Also on file:
discussions for longers as, Friday wining Jans 16, 1942.
Actions of actaits on research from Conference

#### ACTIONS BY THE PRESIDENT

## Since the December 6, 1941 meeting of the Board of Regents

#### RESIGNATIONS:

- 1. John R. Edwards, junior resident, November 7, 1941.
- 2. Ferdinand C. Jacobsen, junior resident, April 23, 1941.
- 3. James R. Johnson, resident, September 30, 1941.
- 4. Kenneth E. Bixby, undergraduate assistant in commerce, December 3, 1941.
- 5. Willis E. Damm, industrial fellow in biochemistry, November 1, 1941.
- 6. The following Sears-Roebuck Agricultural Foundation scholars resigned November 17, 1941:

# Lavern Wagester Joseph Neuberger.

- 7. Arthur F. Jankowski, research assistant in agricultural bacteriology, December 2, 1941.
- 8. Donald V. Jensen, assistant county agent, November 30, 1941.
- 9. Fred Feutz, instructor in dairy industry, December 31, 1941.
- 10. Arthur Ernster, instructor in chemistry, November 7, 1941.
- 11. John M. Yinger, graduate assistant in sociology, December 1, 1941.
- 12. The nominations for the following legislators' scholarships cancelled at the beginning of the second semester of 1941-42:

Harold Miles Eugene L. Pitts William G. Weser Dan Yovetich.

- 13. Bjarne R. Ullsvik, teacher of mathematics, Wisconsin High School, January 1, 1942.
- 14. Joseph R. Richter, assistant physician in student health, December 31, 1941.

#### RESIGNATIONS:

- 15. Velma Axelrod, research technician in medicine, December 15, 1941.
- 16. William C. Weir, WARF research assistant, resigned at the close of the first semester of 1941-42, and his appointment continued without pay from December 22, 1941 to the close of the first semester.
- 17. Robert P. Cox, research assistant in biochemistry, January 1, 1942.
- 18. Michael J. Wolf, research assistant in botany, December 3, 1941.
- 19. George H. Larson, assistant in agricultural engineering, December 20, 1941.
- 20. Martha E. Lewis, instructor and supervisor in orthopedics, January 1, 1942.
- 21. Russell Chadwick, research assistant in geology, December 11, 1941.
- 22. Albert N. Booth, industrial fellow in biochemistry, January 1, 1942 Weepout
- 23. Eleanor F. Bowler, research assistant in the hospital laboratories, October 31, 1941.
- 24. John A. Rosenberg, graduate assistant in mathematics, November 29, 1941.
- 25. Robert H. Blank, Wisconsin scholar, December 3, 1941.
- 26. Margaret Pride Hebard, assistant to the dean of women, December 1, 1941.
- 27. Arme Skaug, post-doctorate fellow in economics, at the beginning of the second semester of 1941-42.
- 28. David G. Steinicke, research assistant in sociology and anthropology, December 2, 1941.
- 30. Eliot O. Waples, non-resident scholar, at the beginning of the academic year 1941-42.
- 31. Dean K. Fuhriman, WARF research assistant, at the beginning of the year 1941-42.
- 32. Robert G. Chapman, research assistant in zoology, December 13, 1941.
- 33. June M. Baker, assistant in the dietary department, hospital, December 13, 1941.

- 1. Charles F. Edson, assistant professor of history, for three years, beginning with the academic year 1941-42, at \$2750 per annum.
- 2. Carl Warmington, lecturer in sociology, academic year 1941-42, without stipend.
- 3. Lester W. Cameron, instructor in English, December 1, 1941 to June 30, 1942, at the rate of \$2000 per annum.
- 4. Elizabeth W. Byrnes, instructor in clinical pathology, beginning January 1, 1942, at \$2,500 per annum, 12 months' basis.
- 5. Arno W. Kurth, assistant in soils, December 1, 1941 to May 1, 1942, at \$400.
- 6. Philleo Nash, field supervisor in sociology and anthropology, October 15 to November 15, 1941, at \$60.
- 7. Margaret M. Mills, assistant in plant pathology and agricultural bacteriology, December 1, 1941 to June 30, 1942, at \$420.
- 8. Arthur F. Jankowski, research assistant in toxicology, December 3, 1941 to close of the academic year 1941-42, at \$420.
- 9. Frederick W. Radke, store room attendant in pharmacy, nine months, beginning October 1, 1941, at \$360.
- 10. William L. Sanford, undergraduate assistant in commerce, December 3, 1941 to the close of the academic year 1941-42, at \$105.
- 11. Francis W. Purcell, undergraduate assistant in commerce, for  $2\frac{1}{2}$  months of the first semester of 1941-42, at \$37.50.
- 12. Arthur E. Jackson, undergraduate assistant in commerce, December 3, 1941 to the close of the academic year 1941-42, at \$70.
- 13. William Krasney-Ergen, research assistant in chemistry,  $2\frac{1}{2}$  months, beginning November 15, 1941, at \$250.
- 14. R. H. Denniston to read correspondence study assignments in botany courses on a fee basis, November 1, 1941 to June 30, 1942, salary not to exceed \$100.
- 15. Oren G. Johnson, county agent for Vernon County, January 1, 1942 to December 31, 1943, at \$1700 per annum.
- 16. Anita Gundlach, home agent for LaCrosse County, January 1, 1942 to December 31, 1944, at \$1500 per annum.

- 17. Wallace C. Voskuil, county agent for Grant County, January 1, 1942 to December 31, 1944, at \$1700 per annum.
- 18. Irene D. Schulist, county 4-H club agent and home demonstration agent for Oconto County, November 24, 1941 to December 31, 1942, at \$1500 per annum.
- 19. The following persons appointed Sears-Roebuck Agricultural Foundation scholars, November 17, 1941 to March 14, 1942, at \$45 each:

# Roland Gillingham Norbert Orth.

- 20. Theodore J. Griswold, Equity Co-operative Livestock Sales Association scholar, September 24, 1941 to February 7, 1942, at \$100.
- 21. Lloyd H. Graf, industrial fellow in biochemistry, November 1, 1941 to June 30, 1942, at \$400.
- 22. Mark A. Stahmann, industrial fellow in biochemistry, November 1, 1941 to June 30, 1942, at \$1600.
- 23. The following persons granted legislators' scholarships for the second semester of 1941-42:

Alfred L. Adams
Robert F. Baumann
Hary Donna Becker
Mary Alice Boyce
Harry Casey
Ann S. Halprin
David W. Hughes
Charles W. Kidd
Fred Lonsdorf
Marguerite J. McDonell

Otto F. Walasek.

Dan Murphy
Frederick W. Negus
Feter Piazza
William H. Rieger
Sam Schwartz
Charles Sedivec
Helen L. Seipp
Leland C. Shoaf
Dolores M. Smith
Lawrence W. Swan

- 24. Beulah M. Larkin, assistant to the dean of women, in charge of vocational advising and placement, beginning December 1, 1941, at \$3,000 per annum, 12 months' basis.
- 25. Helen A. Dickie, instructor in clinical medicine, beginning January 1, 1942, at \$2,000 per annum, 12 months' basis.
- 26. John Catenhusen, biologist at the Arboretum, December 1, 1941 to June 30, 1942, at \$1800 per annum: charge to allotment made by the Regents December 6 for this purpose. (This cancels the appointment of Mr. Catenhusen as research assistant for the month of December 1941.)
- 27. John Catenhusen, research assistant in wildlife management, for two months, beginning November 1, 1941, at \$150 a month.

- 23. Clyde Stormont, assistant (3) in veterminary science and genetics, December 1, 1941 to June 30, 1942, at \$532.
- 29. Theodore M. Sperry, assistant in wildlife management, month of January 1942, at \$150.
- 30. Beryl Howard, research technician  $(\frac{1}{2})$  in medicine, December 18, 1941 to June 30, 1942, at \$50 a month.
- 31. Malcolm H. Hawk, assistant in orthopedics, beginning January 1, 1942, at \$100 plus 3 meals a month.
- 32. Alice M. Lauf, assistant in physiotherapy, orthopedics hospital, beginning January 1, 1942, at \$100 a month.
- 33. Charles H. Krueger, assistant in agricultural engineering, January 6, 1942 to the close of the academic year 1941-42, at \$1129.09.
- 34. Loraine K. Everson, research assistant in cancer research, months of December 1941, January and February 1942, at \$100 a month.
- 35. Louis Bultena, research assistant in sociology and anthropology, December 3, 1941 to the close of the academic year 1941-42, at 4420.
- 36. Hazel F. Briggs, technical assistant at the Wisconsin press, beginning January 1, 1942, at \$60 a month, one-half time.
- 37. Theodore M. Sperry, research assistant in wildlife management, months of November and December 1941, at \$150 a month.
- 38. Lois Bower, assistant in the dietary department, hospital, beginning December 26, 1941, at \$100 a month plus lodging.
- 39. Virginia Corrigan, technical assistant at the Wisconsin press, December 1941 to July 1942, at \$35 a month for half time work on Radio Education book.
- 40. Carl B. Cass, make-up artist at the Wisconsin Union, second semester of 1940-41, at \$22.
- 41. C. A. Wiepking to teach a class in concrete mixtures and testing, Milwaukee Center, beginning in December 1941, 24 meetings, at not to exceed \$360.
- 42. Raphael D. Wagner, teacher of mathematics, Wisconsin High School, January 1942 to the close of the academic year 1941-42, at \$300.
- 43. Milton O. Pella, teacher of science and mathematics, January 1942 to the close of the academic year 1941-42, at \$600. (Wisconsin High School

- 44. Elmer G. Schuld, teacher of mathematics, January 1942 to the close of the academic year 1941-42, at \$300. (Wisconsin High School)
- 45. Howard M. Ausherman, junior resident, beginning January 1, 1942, at \$25 a month plus 3 meals and lodging.
- 46. Norma B. Bowles, junior resident, beginning December 7, 1941, at \$25 a month, plus 3 meals and lodging.
- 47. William W. Leifer, junior resident, beginning December 1, 1941, at \$25 a month plus 3 meals and lodging.
- 43. Austin Lamont, junior resident, beginning December 14, 1941, at \$25 a month plus 3 meals and lodging.
- 49. John B. Ballard, to teach a class in production planning and control (Sec. 1), Milwaukee evening classes, beginning December 2, 1941, for 12 weeks, not to exceed \$120; also to teach production planning and control (Sec. 2), beginning December 5, 1941, for 12 weeks, at not to exceed \$120.
- 50. Robert A. Lowe, to teach a class in time and motion study in Milwaukee evening classes, 24 meetings, beginning December 2, 1941 for 12 weeks, at not to exceed \$360.
- 51. E. E. Brinkman to teach a class in time and motion study at Waukesha, 12 meetings, beginning November 24, 1941, for 12 weeks, at not to exceed \$193.
- 52. Eleanor Mae Walker, county home agent for Dunn County, January 1 to December 31, 1942, at \$1500 per annum.
- 53. Julius L. Wenstadt, county agricultural agent for Dunn County, January 1, 1942 to December 31, 1942, at \$1700 per annum.
- 54. Annette McDonald, county home agent for Winnebago County, beginning January 1, 1942, at \$1500 per annum, 12 months' basis.
- 55. R. Osborne Ralph, county agricultural agent for Douglas County, beginning January 1, 1942, at \$1700 per annum, 12 months' basis.
- 56. Sidney S. Mathisen, county agricultural agent for Eau Claire County, beginning January 1, 1941, at \$1900 per annum, 12 months' basis.
- 57. William L. McFetridge, county agricultural agent for Taylor County, beginning January 1, 1942, at \$1800 per annum, 12 months' basis.
- 58. Roy J. Holvenstot, county agricultural agent for Bayfield County, beginning January 1, 1942, at \$1800 per annum, 12 months' basis.

- 59. Robert C. Heffernan, county agricultural agent for Winnebago County, beginning January 1, 1942, at \$1700 per annum, 12 months basis.
- 60. Eugene H. Florence, county agricultural agent for Trempealeau County, beginning January 1, 1942, at \$1700 per annum, 12 months basis.
- 61. Archie D. Begley, county agricultural agent for Monroe County, beginning January 1, 1942, at \$1700 per annum, 12 months' basis.
- 62. Walter D. Bean, county agricultural agent for Jackson County, beginning January 1, 1942, at \$1700 per annum, 12 months' basis.
- 63. Frank H. Everson, county club agent for Jefferson County, beginning January 1, 1942, at \$1800 per annum, 12 months basis.
- 64. Helen H. Feind, county home agent for Jefferson County, beginning January 1, 1942, at \$1500 per annum, 12 months' basis.
- 65. Alice M. Bilstein, county home agent for Washington County, beginning January 1, 1942, at \$1500 per annum, 12 months' basis.
- 66. Margaret A. Sjolander, county home agent for Richland County, beginning January 1, 1942, at \$1500 per annum, 12 months' basis.
- 67. Marlys Richert, county home agent for Green County, beginning January 1, 1942, at \$1500 per annum, 12 months' basis.
- 68. Leona V. Kilborn, county home agent for Sheboygan County, beginning January 1, 1942, at \$1500 per annum; 12 months' basis.
- 69. Elizabeth C. Davies, county 4-H and home agent for Iowa County, beginning January 1, 1942, at \$1500 per annum, 12 months' basis.
- 70. David H. Williams, county agricultural agent for Sauk County, beginning January 1, 1942, at \$1700 per annum, 12 months' basis.
- 71. Murray P. Pinkerton, county agricultural agent for Crawford County, beginning January 1, 1942, at \$1700 per annum, 12 months' basis.
- 72. Ray L. Pavlak, county agricultural agent for Green County, beginning January 1, 1942, at \$1800 per annum, 12 months' basis.
- 73. William B. Noyes, county agricultural agent for Iowa County, beginning January 1, 1942, at \$1700 per arnum, 12 months' basis.
- 714. Harrison R. Noble, county agricultural agent for Portage County, beginning January 1, 1942, at \$1900 per annum, 12 months! basis.
- 75. A. Vernon Miller, county agricultural agent for Richland County, beginning January 1, 1942, at \$1800 per annum, 12 months basis.

- 76. Abraham L. McMahon, county agricultural agent for Calumet County, beginning January 1, 1942, at \$1700 per annum, 12 months' basis.
- Oral G. Claflin, county agricultural agent for Columbia County, beginning January 1, 1942, at \$1700 per annum, 12 months' basis.
- Alvin D. Carew, county agricultural agent for Green Lake County, (rank of assistant professor), beginning January 1, 1942, at \$1900 per annum, 12 months' basis.
- 79. George F. Baumeister, county agricultural agent for Shawano County (rank of assistant professor), beginning January 1, 1942, at \$1900 per annum, 12 months' basis.
- 80. Lambert J. Stahler, assistant county agent, Taylor County, December 1, 1941 to February 28, 1942, at \$450.
- 81. Claude O. Ebling, county agricultural agent for Rusk County, beginning January 1, 1942, at \$1300 per annum, 12 months' basis.
- Paul L. Pavcek, industrial fellow in biochemistry, December 1, 1941 to December 1, 1942, at \$1500. Noul develock mean 30.
- Warren A. Schrage, commerce scholar, for the academic year 1941-42, at \$50.

  Jane Stottler, non-resident scholar, for the academic year 1941-42. 83.
- 84.
- 85. Marian L. Foster, Elizabeth Waters Hall fellow, January 5, 1942 to the close of the academic year 1941-42, room and board.

### SALARY AND SERVICE ADJUSTMENTS:

- 1. Marion Ryan, technical assistant in the Wisconsin Press, salary increased from \$90 to \$115 a month, beginning December 1, 1941, with three weeks vacation if full year is served, 1½ days per month allowed after first six months.
  - 2. Alice C. Harper, assistant in wildlife management, salary adjusted to \$750 for the period January 1 to June 30, 1942.
  - 3. John M. Gaus, appointed to teach a class in political science 1/43M in Milwaukee, to receive \$35.30 for two meetings, and the balance of the classes for the 1st semester cancelled.
  - 4. Henry L. Ewbank, appointed to teach a class in Speech 136M, Milwaukee, to receive \$17.65 for one meeting, and the balance of the classes cancelled for the 1st semester of 1941-42.
  - 5. M. C. Otto, professor of philosophy, permitted to withdraw in cash his remuneration for teaching in the summer session of 1940, \$750, less teachers' retirement.
  - 6. J. Russell Lane, assistant professor of speech, salary for the balance of the academic year 1941-42, beginning December 3, 1941, to be distributed as follows: \$1,190, 5-E theater revolving; \$1,190, 5-L L. & S. speech; no change in total salary.
  - 7. Ellen M. Jackson promoted from assistant in physiotherapy to instructor and supervisor in physical therapy, beginning January 1, 1942, at \$125 a month.
  - 8. Forrest H. Turner, instructor in agronomy and soils, appointment adjusted for the period January 1 to June 30, 1942, at \$1500.
  - 9. William H. Pell, graduate assistant in mathematics, salary increased by \$104.55 from December 1, 1941 to the close of the 1st semester of 1941-42.
  - 10. Arnold P. Sundal, graduate assistant in sociology, salary increased to \$712.50 for the period November 26, 1941 to June 30, 1942.
- 11. Robert A. Rohwer, graduate assistant in sociology, salary increased to \$737.50 for the period November 26, 1941 to June 30, 1942.
- 12. John B. Gillingham, graduate assistant in sociology, salary increased to \$612.50 for the period November 26, 1941 to June 30, 1942.

## LEAVES OF ABSENCE:

- 1. Ronald A. Simpson, junior resident, November 15, 1941, without pay.
- 2. Justin Waterman, assistant in agricultural engineering, December 8, 1941 to March 7, 1942, without pay.
- 3. James S. Parker, assistant professor of economics, extension division, December 3, 1941 to the close of the academic year 1941-42, without pay.
- 4. C. Wright Thomas, assistant professor of English, Extension Division and College of Letters and Science, December 3, 1941 to the close of the academic year 1941-42, without salary.
- 5. Edith A. Stehle, instructor in neuropsychiatry, one month, beginning December 1, 1941, without pay.